
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL ·COUNCIL 

Thirty-sixth session 

1277th · meeting 

Thursday6 II July 1963 
at 10.50 a.m. 

. ' ) = .. ~~ : ' · . , · : · 

OFFICIAL RECORDS~- :•" . 
.-:, 

(r'., 

CONTENTS 

Agenda ·items 4 and 6: 
,_,, General review· of the development, co-ordination and 

concentration of the economic, social and human rights 
programmes and activities of the Uirlted Nations, the 
specialized agencies and the International Atomic Energy 
Agency as a whole · 

. United Nations Development Decacte 
(a) Report prepared pursuant to Council resolution 916 

(XXXIV), paragraphs 13 and 10; 
(b) Study prepared by. the Secretary-General pursuant 

to General Assembly resolution 1827 (XVII) on a 
. United Nations Training and Research Institute; 

. ~ · , (c) Proposals for a priority programme of co-ordinated 
· .·. action in the field of water resources 

':~~:~·.:; : 
General debate (concluded) .. . . . . . . ' 

President: Mi'. A. PATI~O (Colombia) 

Present: 

Page 

103 

Representatives of the following States: Argentina, 
Australia, Austria, Colombia, Czechoslovakia, El Sal­
vador, Ethiopia, France, India, Italy, Japan, Jordan, 
Senegal, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, United 
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United 
States of America, Uruguay, Yugo~lavia. . 

Observers for the following Member States: Algeria:, . 
Brazil, Bulgaria, Canada, CentraJ African Republic,' 
China, Greece; Hungary, Israel, ~uxembourg, Mexico, 
Norway, Pakistan, Sweden. · 

Observers for the following non-member States: 
Holy See, Switzerland. 

Representatives of the following specialized agencies: 
International Labour Organisation, Food and Agricul­
ture Organization of the United Nations, United Nations 
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization, Inter­
national Civil Aviation Organization, 'International Bank 
for Reconstruction and Development, International 
Monetary Fund, World Health Organization, Inter­
national Telecommunication Union; World Meteorolo­
gic '. OrganiZation. 

.'ibe representative of the Intematiomil Atomic Energy 
Agen~y. · 

PALAIS DES NATIONS, GENEVA 

· ' (': ·Specialized agencies and the International Atomic Energy 
Agency as a whole (E/3695, E/3742, E/3746, E/3751, 
E/3752 and Add.1, E/3754, E/3758, E/3762 and Add.l 
and 2, E/3765, E/3767 and Add.1, E/3768, E/3778, 
E/3787, E/3788, E/3793) 

United Nations Development Decade 

(a) Report prepared pursuant to Council resolution 916 
(XXXIV), paragraphs 13 and 10 (E/3776); 

(b) Study prepared J>y the Secretary-General pursuant to 
General Assembly resolution 1827 (XVll) on a United 
Nations training and research institute (E/3780); 

(c) Proposals for a priority programme of co-ordinated 
action in the field of water resources (E/3760) 

GENERAL DEBATE (cimc/uded) 

. In the absence of the President, Sir Ronald Walker 
(Australia), first Vice-President, took the Chair. 

1. Mr. MATSUI (Japan) said that in General Assembly 
resolution 1710 (XVI) Member States had pledged to 
intensify their concerted efforts in the economic and social 
field in order to attain an annual rate of growth of national 

. income of 5 per cent in the developing countries at the 
. end of the Development Decade. During the _first two 
years of the.Deeade, considerable progress had been made 
in the econ9mic, social and human rights activities of the 
United Nations system. The Conference on the Applica­
tion of Science and Technology had been held in Feb­
rurary 1963. The important United Nations Conference 
on Trade and Development would be held in the early 
part of 1964 with the objective of promoting the inter­
national trade of the developing countries as an effective 
instrument for their economic development. The prepara­
tory Committee for that . Conference had already met 
twice in 1963 and had accomplished tangible results. The 
World Food Programme, which was a joint undertaking 
of the Upjted Nations and FAO, had started its opera­
tions on 1 January 1963, and was rapidly expanding its 
work. Further progress had been made by the expansion 
of the activities of the Committee for Industrial Develop­
me~t. The Committee for Housing, Building and Plan- _ 
ning had been· ~stablished and it was expected to achieve 
considerable --progress in due course. That ·trend had not 
been limited to the United Nations itself, for the speci­
alized agencies and IAEA had also undertaken, with re­
newed vigour, a number of projects and programmes 

AGENDA ITEMS 
4 

AND 
6 

within their respective purviews. - · . · 

. . . . v' · 2. With. the commencement of the Development Decade 
Gen~:ral re-view of the development, co-operation and con- the activities of the agencies of the United Nations system 

centration of the econoniic, social and, human rights had widened in scope and increased in number. It was 
programmes and activities of the United Nations, the therefore important to keep constantly in mind the 

103 
E/SR.l277 



104 Economic and Social Council - thirty-sixth session 

amount of resources available for those activities. 
Although contributions to the technical assistance pro­
grammes were increasing every year, i~ was no secret that 
the funds available were far from sufficient. For that 
reason, it was essential for all the agencies concerned to 
avoid duplication and overlapping. They should also take 
collective action towards attaining the objectives of the 
economic and technical assistance programmes of the 
United Nations family. The best way to achieve those 
purposes under the existing arrangements was to 
strengthen co-ordination between the activities of the 
agencies. 

3. While excellent work had been done in the past in that 
connexion by ACC, he would recall the role that the 
Council was expected to play in matters relating to co­
ordination. Under Article 63 of the Charter, the Council 
had to co-ordinate the activities of the specialized agencies 

V'through consultation with and recommendations to such 
agencies and through recommendations to the General 
Assembly and to the Members of the United Nations. 
Accordingly, it seemed desirable that the Council should 
assume a more important role in co-ordination by 
establishing an even closer working partnership with 
ACC. It should be clearly understood, however, that 
efforts to co-ordinate should not infringe the autonomy 
of the various agencies-of the United Nations family. 

4. In that connexion, it was timely and fitting that by 
v _,. resolution 920 (XXXIV), the Council should have estab­

blished the Special Committee on Co-ordination, with par­
ticular emphasis on the Development Decade. The 
Special Committee had met for the first time early in 
1963 and, in spite of the limited time at its· disposal, had 
produced a valuable report (E/3778). Although there had· 

..-oeen diverging views on certain p_oints,. a consensus had 
been reached in tne-speCiaCcommittee on the priority 
areas of the Development Decade, in terms of both field 
activities and development measures and technique. It 
was to be hoped that on that basis the Special Committee 
would be able to provide more specific guide-lines for 
future co-ordination among the agencies concerned. 

5. · Mr. WODAK (Austria) said that the effective co­
ordination of the United Nations machinery had acquired 
special significance since the adoption of General 
Assembly resolution 1710 (X~/I). The aims of that reso­
lution could only be achieved if the Organization's com­
mon resources were properly pooled and if its common 
efforts were thoroughly co-ordinated. 

6. The twin dangers of overlapping and duplication 
existed in every country and efforts were normally made 
to avoid them through the budget. .It was difficult to 
exercise a similar control over United Nations activities, 
however, since there was not just one but several bud~ets. 
The various agencies decided on their expenditure and 
projects at their annual general conferences. That was not 
necessarily a drawback, since the member. countries of the 
United Nations and of the specialized agencies could 
achieve a certain measure of co-ordination among all the 
agencies by efficiently participating in their work. 

/ 7. Considetation should be given notto the establishment 
of a new committee, but to making those already in 
existence really effective. 

8. Planning, decision and control should be centralized 
so far as possible but as much decentralization as com­
patible should . be allowed in the matter of execution. 
With respect to regional co-operation, the remarks on 
functional classifications contained in paragraph 19 of 
the Special Committee's report were of particular interest. 
His delegation shared the view that an agency-by-agency 

~
approach presented certain dangers and would welcome 
an increasing number of regional · E!'ojects carried out 

I ointly by several or all ageiicieS.The Lower Mekong 
Basin project seemed to be an outstanding example in 
that respect. 

v-9. In paragraph 11 of its report, the Special Committee 
had unanimously established an order of priorities for the 
future work of the Council, according to which the pri­
mary problem in the years to come would be the develop­
ment of international trade, followed by the development 
of industry, human resources, agriculture and natural 
resources. That order of priority was basically correct, 
although it might be argued that the development of 
human resources was not an isolated aspect but was 
essentially connected with all phases of development., 

10. Proposals had been made for the adoption of a trade 
policy which wou1d permit developing countries to com­
pete on the markets of industrialized countries on equal 
terms. His government was prepared to make its contribu­
tion to such efforts, which could prove effective only if a 
large number of governments participated in them. 

11. The fullest attention should be given to the strengthen­
ing of economic relations between the developing coun­
tries . themselves. An increase in the trade between those 
countries would contribute greatly towards their develop­
ment. 

12. So far as the Development Decade was concerned, 
the United Nations should be guided primarily by the 
needs of the developing countries j(lnd consequently should 
adhere, so far as possible, to the ideas of those countries 
as to how their development problems should be tackled. 
An interesting experiment in that connexion had been 
undertaken in July 1962 at Salzburg, where about one 
hundred people from thirty-four countries, large and small, 
developed and less developed, members of governments 
and officials, trade-union leaders and scientists, had met 
to discuss the problems of the Development Decade. 
That conference had been organized by the 'Theodor 
Korner Foundation and its results had been set forth in 
the Vienna · Declaration on Co-operation for Develop­
ment. 

13. It might be of great value to begin the over-all co­
ordination of the activities of the United Nations and the 
specialized ·agencies at the pre-programming stage, as 
suggested in paragraph 21 of the Special Committee's 
report. That task might be carried out by the Special 
Fund, whose work his government was already supporting 
to the fullest possible extent. In order to guarantee that 
spending was properly co-ordinated it might be possible 
to arrange for pre-programming consultations within the 

·United Nations and all specialized agencies in respect of 
expenditure under their regular programmes. That would 
be far from easy, since the programming cycles of the 
different agencies varied in length, but a solution might 



:·' ll'17th meeting---: 11 JUly :1963 lOS 

. :~; ~'.:. I 

be found which · would )lelp -.to eliminate at least some 
ovei:lapping. · · · .. · · · · 

14. In conclusion; he. was ·glad · t6 note that in technica,l . 
assistance the efforts made t~ achieve co-ordination had 
already . produced tangible results, as evidenced by the , 
twenty-eighth report of ACC (E/3765, paras. 17-29), the 
report · of the ad hoc :committee of Ten (E/3750) and the · 
report of the recent session of TAC (E/,3783) . . · · 

!'fs. Mr. MIGONE (Argentina) said that his country was 
increasingly convinced of the necessity for-the existence 
and expansion of the. United Natiop.s specialized agencies, · 
and for the need for growing co~operation between them 
and national administrations . .. · · · 

16. What most disturbed his delegation was the fact that 
the multiplicatio~. and aggravation of economic and 
social problems mightfrustrate the efforts. that had been 
made. It was open to doubt whether 'the massive orga-' 
nization that had been' set up was working in the most 
effective way and whether available resources could be 
increased - other than by a radical reduction of arma­
ments :-to the· e~tent n~cessary to ineet increasingly 
urgent needs. · · · 

17. Some order of. priority should be established for the. 
factors of development. New methods of equipping the · 
developing cmp1tries mustbe found, One .major draw~· 
back was the steady deterioration in their international 
trade. If that situation ·was notTemedied, no amount of 
technical. assistance, investment,. or pla:nning would pro­
duce the results that United Nations acti.on was designed 
to achieve. If an international crisis was to be avoided, 
a redistribution of the national incqme of the v:arious 
countries was urgently necessary. . . . . 
18. All planning presupposed a · certain · order of priority 
depending on the particular situation of each co~try. 
The· experience of the ,past .few years had shown that there 
wa8 one sector to which absolute priority must be given, 
_namely, trade. Since the develQpe~ countries apparently 
'hesitated to·• take the action concerning trade recom­
mended in ·numerous United Nations resolutions, the 
meetings of many of the subsidiary bodies w'ere rio more 
than . parliamentary . exercises; while considerable . re­
sources were devoted to certain activities at the expense 
of others wliich would be more fruitful. It was therefore 
to be hoped tl.lat _the Conference. on trade. and Develop­
ment would prompt the industrializ.ed countries to·-inake 
the desh:ed changes in their ,trade . policy~ . · · · · 

19: A study cif the programmes ·c:>f the United Nations 
and its ~pecialized agencies revealed that a ~serious im~ · 
balance persisted between the resources allocated to the 
develojmieht of agriculture and these devoted to indus­
trialization. The -balance ·should be restored,. · hot by: 
reducing the credits for agricultural programmes but,-by . 
increasing those for. industrial development.· That under­
lined the necessity of advanc~ng· towards the ' eventual 
creation of a, specjalized··agency for industrial develop" 
/ ment. In .. the meantime, c_!he relevant activities of .the· 
regional ·economic· commissions . should be stepped UP..!J 
The important contribution of the Alliance.Jor .Progress 
to th~ industrial development of the-America!r should be 
noted. :. · · · 

. . . . 
20: The · Argentine delegation approved the · order of 
priority proposed py the. Special Committee. ·on Co­

. ordination. According to the proposals, priority would be 
·given, firstly, to · the promotion of international trade as 
a .primary instrument of development; secondly, to 
industrial development; and lastlyto:the development of 
human resources, . of · agricultural production and of 
natural. resources. The report should, · however, be re­
garded as being of a preliminary nature and :·should 
shortly be supplemented in· or~er to nieet the needs 
envisaged when the Committee had· been established.-

21:. The various activities referred to in t_he report called 
for some comment. Industrialization w~s an . essential 
means of reducing unemployment in the under-developed 
countries and of providing the needed· impetus to their 
economies. It w~ closely linke<l with the mechanization 
of agriculture, which not only helped to·. increase food 
production, but also raised the i~come of the rural masses. 
and thus enabled them to· buy . the products of industry. 
The developinG coun~ries contained another relatively 
untapped source of wealth, namely human resources, the 
development of which enabled a substantial increase to 
be realized in economic potenti~l; hence the importance 

. of training programmes and. the improvement of labour­
management . relations. All tliose aCtivities should be 
phinped democratically, · 

22. Mr. ZAPOTOCKY. (Czechoslovakia) said that the 
main objectives of the Development Decade were to 
eliminate t)le last vestiges of.colonialism, bring about the 

../ economic_ independence 'of the. developing countries; and 
enab!e them to· achieve ~stained development and an 
equitable position in international trade. To secure thos~ 
objectives, the United Nations and its specialized agencies 
had adopted certain positive measures in recenfyears, but 
the Development Decade remained a congliJmeration of 
partial programmes some of which had· come into exis-

. tence more or less independently; The Decade was still 
only an idea rather _than ~ coherent programme of action. 
It was not. merely a . matter of co-ordination; greater 
attention should' be p~id . to · ~ndustriali~ation and also to 
land reform, both of which were vital to the development 
of the developing countries. . 
. \ 

23. Obviously; disarinaineiit would release immense re­
sources which would accelerate the solution of the prob­
lems facing the developing countries. The study of the 
economic consequences· of disarmament sho.uld find its 
proper place ·within· the Development Decade. At · the 
same tiine, greater stress should be laid on the mobiliza­
tion of domestic resources within the developing coun­
tries and the establishment of satisfactory conditions for 
the effective utilization of foreign capital. . 

24. The activities of the United .Nations and the speCi­
alized agencies ·must be redirected towards fulfilliq.g the 
objectives of the Development Decade even at the cost of 
curtailing other less important activities. That would also 
inspire governments to intensify their national· efforts 

' and to seek in<;reased bilateral aid. 

25. The 'Development Decade must not be a· mere slogan 
but a sound programme of action. The Conference on 
the Application of Science and ·Technology had been but 



Econorilic .. and Social Council - thirty-sixth session 

a first step, but it was imperative to apply its lessons 
within the developing countries .. Similarly, the Con­
ference on Trade and Development could become one of 
the most significant achievements of the United Nations. 
But it must deal seriously with existing disequilibria in 
international trade and propose . practical measures for 
removing them. It must also lay down fair principles of 
international economic co-operation, place proper stress 
on the development needs of individual countries, and 
provide the groundwork for the establishment of an 
international trade organization. 

26. The report on the activities of the United Nations 
Water Resources Development Centre (E/3760) deserved 
particular attention because the planned utilization of 
water was of vital importance for every country. His dele­
gation assumed that special emphasis would be laid on 
integrated river basin development, in which Czecho­
slovakia had valuable experience which it was eager to 
share with other countries. 

27. At the 1274th meeting, th~ Secretary-General had 
drawn the Council's attention to the need for caQcelling 
or postponing some . of the sessions of certain bodies in 
view of the heavy calendar during the coming year or so. 
That ~as logical but it would be equally logical not to 
cancel or postpone meetings which were of vital impor­
tance. The United Nations must therefore give serious 
. thought to the establishment of priorities. 

28. Mr. ARANGO (Colombia) said that his delegation 
had voted for General Assembly resolution 1710 (XVI) 

,_...--and Council resolution 916 (XXXIV) relating to the 
Development Decade, the purpose of which was stated 
clearly in the former. In a way, it could be said .that all the 
items on the agenda of the current session led back to the 
central problem of the fight against under-development. 
While the efforts so far made were collllllendable, it was 

v still a fact that the development process had begun alo.ng 
lines which .were far from realistiC.- . 

29. In the first place, the term under-development was 
ambiguo.us, as its meaning varied considerably from one 
country to. another. Thus, it was right that resQlution 
1710 (XVI) should state that each country must set its 
own target in the matter of development. If it was true that 
development entailed certain prerequiste economic and 
social conditions, it could be said that Latin America 
had made great progress in creating the political, social 
and legal institutions which were essential to progr-ess. In 
order to prepare for dev(!lopment, Colombia had estab­
lished. many essential institutions which guaranteed 
freedom of association to workers, the elimination of 
forced labour and the equality of men and women. 

30. Planning was .one of the most effective weapons in 
the fight against under-development. While planning was 
no magic formula, it was necessary and a plan should 
therefore be prepared for adaptation to the needs of each 
individual country and to serve as a general guide for the 
various activities. ' 

31. The essential factor was not capital but man's ability 
to change nature. That was why training and technieal 
assistance were so important; it was gratifying to see that 

technical assistance activities were a constant preoccupa­
tion of all the specialized agencies. In all the under­
developed countries the shortage of administrators . was 
acute and technical assistance would have no permanent 
impact so long as the assisted countries did not produce 
their own scientists and technicians. 
32; As the . representative of Argentina had said earlier 
in the meeting, the deterioration in the terms of trade 
created a critical situation in the under-developed coun­
tries. Paradoxically, the Latin American· countries were 
currentiy exporting more than in the past but obtaining 
less foreign exchange in return, while demographic pres­
sure was steadily increasing and they had to import 
essential capital equipment for their industrialization. 
That tragic position frustrated all their plans and pro­
moted unemployment and political and social crisis. 
Many countries were thus caught in a vicious circle, since, 
conversely, political and social instability made it im­
possible for them to draw up long-term plans. That 
constituted a very serious problem for. Colombia as for 
many other countries. The critical stage, at which the 
deterioration in the terms of trade would render · the 
action of the international institutions useless, was not far 
distant. The Council had made a great many efforts since 
the Havana Conference in 1947 and 1948 to remedy that 
situation. Moreover, the purpose for which GATT had 
been established was the elimination of the barriers imped­
ing international trade. However, despite all those efforts, 
the situation was more critical than ever. It was to be 
hoped that it would be possible at the forthcoming Con­
ference on Trade and Development to formulate pro­
grammes whose implementation would change the terms 
of international trade. Many under-developed countries 
had in fact reached the point where they had no faith in 
the efficacy of the various programmes which werr being 
carried out, so long as the terms of trade did not improve. 

V A.s President Kennedy had said, the nations of the world 
had the resources to fight against famine and an · they 
needed was the firm determination to use them. He 
welcomed the United States representative's statement 
at the 1275th meeting concerning an increase in the 
resources ofiDA/ which was already giving the under-. 
developed countries considerable support . . 

_33. Mr. P. · BARTON (International Confederation of 
Free Trade Unions), speaking at the invitation of the 
President, said that, while the proposals for action origi­
nally submitted in connexion with the Development 
Decade had been most inspiring, the latest report by the 
Secretary-General on the subject (E/3776) was somewhat 
disappointing. His organization had expect~d a more 
detailed programme for the ·achievement of the aims of 
the Development Decade, but the report was mainly 
concerned with administrative problems. 
· Since the Development Decade was such an enormous 

project it would be only natural if difficulties arose in the 
matter of co-ordination. Some problems of intellectual 
co-ordination had already become apparent. For ex­
ample, the Conference on Science and Technology had 
been an attempt to bring together scientists, technologists 
and economists, but it had not been fully successful; many 
of the discussions had been amateurish, while some of the 
most imaginative proposals had not been discussed at all. 



1277tb meeting- 11 July 1963 107 

A similar problem seemed. destined to arise at. the pro­
jected Conference on Trade and Development. So far all 
emphasis in preparing that Conference had been on trade 
and none on development, although, when the decision 
to hold the Conference had been taken, the general under­
standing had been that trade problems would be discussed 
primarily in the light of the problems of 'development. 
Similarly, when plans · for the Development Decade had 
originally been put forward it had been stressed that the 
social and economic aspects of development must be 
given equal weight. But that basic consideration seemed 
already to have been forgotten. 

34. His organization was somewhat perturbed by the 
reference in paragraph 175 of the Secretary-General's 
repoit to the role of the ILO in the creation of a strong 
trade-union movement. That was in fact not the respon­
sibility of the ILO, but of the trade unions and the 
workers themselves. . 

35. Finally, with reference to the observations made by 
the representative of Australia at the 1276th meeting, 
a new science was needed to grasp the international, 
interlinked development of economy. That new science 
must not neglect the social aspects of development. 

36. Mr. · PASTOR! (Uruguay) said that in connexion 
with the items under discussion his delegation attached 
fundamental importance to the subject of international 
trade. The Council had decided in resolution 920 (XXXIV) 

/to establish a Special Cominittee orr- -co:-ofdination 
to deal particularly with activities relating to the Develop-. 
ment Decade. In the report which it bad submitted, the 
Special Coii:rmittee had expressed the view that trade was 
a primary instrument of development. ;From the twenty­
eighth report of ACC, on the other hand, it appeared that 
the specialized agencies had overlooked -the problem of 
international trade. The imrression was therefore that 
the Council had not been supplied· with all the material 
for which it had asked in resolution 916 (XX),QV). 

37. In the course of its discussions the Special Committee 
had received a number of suggestions, including one for 

Printea in Switzerland 
Reprinted in U.N. 

·. the establishment of an international trade organization: 
to co-ordinate the activities of the various United Nations 
bodies con~rned. Although co-ordination was more . 
essential than ever, ·his delegation was not automatically 

c.--in favour of the establishmcmt of a new· orgamzation. It 
considered that the results of the work of CICT, GAIT 
and the regional economic commissions had been disap­
pomting. The results of the meeting on problems of the 
meat trade had not come up to expectations. The pro­
visions of recent resolutions on international commodity 
trade had not been: in keeping with the urgency of the 
problems to be solved; and ECLA, too, had been unable 
to deal with those problems, Owing to lack. of resources. 
Consequently, his delegation recognized the need for a 
new organization capable of giving the necessary impetus 
to the work of the bodies concerned with international 
trade, but first it was necessary to decide how it should be 
constituted and what its terms of reference would be. 
It was quite wrong to postpone the necessary co-ordina­
tion on the grounds that the Conference on Trade and 
Development was to be held shortly. · 

38. On the subject of under-development, some impor~ 
tant distinctions should be made. Some of the less 
developed countries were in the very early stage of 
development, while others had already reached a relatively 
high level, which was, however, constantly in jeopardy. · 
The situation of the latter countries was even more 
serious than that of countries which were developing at a 

·slow but steady pace. The Council should ensure. that the 
)._ competent authorities co-ordinated their work in such a 

way that some specific results could be achieved. 

39. The PRESIDENT declared the general debate on 
items ·4: and 6 closed. Item 4 and sub-items (a) and (b) 
of item 6 would be referred to the Co-ordination Com­
mittecr, and sub-item (c) of item 6 to the Economic Com­
mittee, for consideration and report. 

·I 

The meeting rose at 12.40 p.m. 

4055-August 1963-1,350 
18618-September 1963-1,100 




